2.0

3.0

4.1

4.2

Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees
AGENDA
Liberty Elementary School
Library
1771 Bast Pacific Tulare, CA 93274

Adopt Agenda (Action Item)

This item is provided as an opportunity for trustees, through consensus, to approve,
re-sequence, or table agenda topics. In accordance with the Brown Act Requirements
effective July 1, 2008, if documents are distributed to board members concerning an agenda
item within 72 hours of a regular board meeting, at the same time the documents will be
made available for public inspection at the District Office located at 1771 E. Pacific Ave.
Tulare, CA 93274.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Brown Act, if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting, including receipt of the agenda and
documents in the agenda package in an alternate format, please contact the Liberty
Elementary School District Office at (559) 686-1675. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the district to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting (28CFR35.102-35, 104 ADA Title II), and allow for the preparation of
documents in the appropriate alternate format.

Adjourn to Closed Session
The Board may adjourn to closed session to discuss matters of personnel security,
negotiations, student discipline, litigation, or other matters as authorized by the government
Code Section 3459.1, 5496.6 and 54967.6 and Ed Code Sections 35136 and 48913.
a. (Ed Code Section 35146, 48900) Student Discipline & Other Confidential
Student Matters.
b. (Gov. Code 54957) Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release
¢. Gov. Code 54956.9) Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government
Code section 54956.9, subdivision (d)(2) or (3)
d. Employment, resignations, transfers, etc. of Certificated and Classified
Personnel
(Gov. Code, 3549.1) Negotiations

Flag Salute

Roll Call: Ron Koetsier President
John Beaver Clerk
Diane Tanner Member
Jonathon Thorpe Member
Jill White Member

Also in attendance for Closed and Open Session: Deanna Cardoza (Superintendent).




4.3

4.4

3.0

3.1

S.2

3.3

5.4

5.5

6.0

6.1

6.2

Adjournment:

Board President — Opportunity for Board President to comment or report on any matters
pertinent or of concern to the Board.
a. Board President to announce Closed Session Items of Discussion.

Public Comments:

Those in the audience desiring to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda may
do so at this time. Each speaker is to have (3) three minutes to address the Board and make
a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question regarding matters related to
the school system. Please understand that the Board does not take action on non-agenda
items.

Information Items: :
This item is provided for informational reports and will highlight district and student events
and successes.

Staff Reports - Opportunity for Liberty Elementary School Staff Members to comment or
report on any matters pertinent or of concern to the Board.

Superintendent — Opportunity for Superintendent to comment or report on any matters
pertinent or of concern to the Board.

Principal- Opportunity for Principal to comment or report on any matters pertinent or of
concern to the Board.

First Reading on Updated CSBA December 2022 Board Policies

Liberty Elementary School District 2022-2023 Local Control Accountability Plan
Year 1 Qutcome

Action Items:
These items are provided for Board information, discussion, and/or action.

Approval of Consent Agenda
*Minutes of Regular Board Meeting, December 14, 2021

*Payment of Warrants

Approval of Annual Developer Fee Report 2021-2022




CSBA UPDATE CHECKLIST - December 2022

District Name: Liberty Elementary School District

Contact Name: Dr. Deanna Cardoza  Phone: (559) 686:1675  fqj): dcardoza@liberty k12.ca.us

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT
DATE
BP 0430 Comprehensive Local Plan for Special
Education
AR 0430 Comprchensive Local Plan for Special
Education
BP 0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan
AR 0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan
BP 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan
AR 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan
BP 3250 Transportation Fees
AR 3250 Transportation Fees
AR 3260 Fees and Charges
BP 3460 Financial Reports and Accountability
AR 3460 Financial Reports and Accountability
BP 3515 Campus Security
AR 3513 Campus Security
AR 35162 Bomb Threats
BP 3540 Transportation
BP 5131.7 Weapons and Dangerous Insirument OPTION1: 1
OPTION?2: [
AR 5131.7 Weapons and Dangerous Instrument




District Name:

CSBA UPDATE CHECKILIST — December 2022

Liberty Elementary School District

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT
DATE
AR 51413 Health Examinations
BP 5142 Safety
AR 5142 Safety
AR 51422 Safe Routes to School Program
BP 5148.2 Before/After School Programs
AR 31482 Before/After School Programs
BP 5148.3 Preschool/Earty Childhood Education
AR 51483 Preschool/Early Childhood Education
AR 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for{pares Bianks
Special Education PR
Superintendent or designee
1771 E Pacific Ave, Tulare, CA
(559) 686-1675




District Name: liberty Elementary School District

CSBA UPDATE CHECKLIST — December 2022

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT
DATE
BB 9220 Governing Board Elections
AND
AND
BB 9223 Filling Vacancies
BB 9323 Meeting Conduct




CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET
December 2022

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations,
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly.

Board Policy 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) requiring the State Superintendent of Public Instruction
to make publicly available the special education funding each local educational agency (LEA) generates for
their Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), and for the SELPA, to report to member LEA's the amount
of funding each LEA generates for the SELPA.

Administrative Regulation 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which extends the timeline for developing an
annual assurances support plan to July 1, 2027. A template for the annual assurances support plan will be
developed by CDE by July 1, 2026. Additional minor revisions as necessary for clarity.

Board Policy 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan
Policy updated to clarify language related to approval of the tactical response plan and add material regarding
the district's requirement to provide data to the California Department of Education pertaining to lockdown
or multi-option response drills conducted at district schools.

Administrative Regulation 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which requires, starting with the 2023-24 school
year, districts to include in the annual notification to parents/guardians information related to the safe storage
of firearms, and for certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular
basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or
observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat
to law enforcement. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1352, 2021) which authorizes
districts to request the Military Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration
Center (Cal-CSIC), to perform an independent security assessment of the district or an individual district
school and NEW LAW (AB 2355, 2022) which requires districts that experience a cyberattack, which
impacts more than 500 students or personnel, to report the cyberattack to Cal-CSIC. Additionally, regulation
updated to include in the optional list of comprehensive safety plan components (1) strategies aimed at
preventing potential incidents involving crime and violence on school campuses, (2) provision of safety
materials and emergency communications in language(s) understandable to parents/guardians, (3) procedures
for the early identification and threat assessment of, and appropriate response to, suspicious and/or
threatening digital media content, (4) district policy and/or plan related to pandemics, (5) communication
with parents/guardians regarding unification plans and necessity of cooperating with first responders, and (6)
continuity of operations procedures to ensure that the district's essential functions are not disrupted during an
emergency, to the extent possible.

Board Policy 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which states, by January 31, 2025, an Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE) shall
completed by districts which are identified by the California Department of Education (CDE) as needing an
improvement plan. Additionally, policy is updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) requiring the LCAP
parent advisory committee to include at least a parent/guardian of currently enrolled students with disabilities.
Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 997, 2022) which requires, beginning July 1, 2024, districts
serving middle or high school students to include two students as full members of the existing parent advisory
committee or establish a student advisory committee to provide advice to the Board and the Superintendent
or designee.



Administrative Regulation 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022), which states Beginning July 1, 2025, if the district
is identified by State Board of Education (SBE) as needing an improvement plan related to improvements in
services for students with disabilities, the Board shall adopt, and update on an annual basis, an Individual
with Disabilities Education Act IDEA) Addendum, based on the template adopted by SBE.

Board Policy 3250 - Transportation Fees
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which exempts a student classified as unduplicated
from paying a fee for transportation. The policy is also updated to include an optional waiver of transportation
fees for any group of district students, at the recommendation of the Superintendent. Also, the provision
regarding privacy moved from AR to BP.

Administrative Regulation 3250 - Transportation Fees
Regulation updated to add that bus passes shall be sold electronically, if available, and removed language
related to income eligibility that is no longer relevant. Moved provision regarding privacy to the Board Policy
and deleted it from Administrative Regulation,

Administrative Regulation 3260 - Fees and Charges
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which prohibits charging the parent of an
unduplicated student a fee for transportation, removed policy related to the sale or lease of personal computers
or internet appliances because of the increased use of technology in the modern classroom, changed
terminology from "homemaking" to "family and consumer sciences," and reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021)
which requires a district to provide a free breakfast and lunch daily to any student who requests a meal.

Board Policy 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability
Policy updated to reflect the predictors of fiscal distress as identified by FCMAT in its 2019 "Indicators of
Risk or Potential Insolvency." Updated policy also revised to reflect the law more clearly with respect to
studies, reports, evaluations, and audits, that the County Superintendent of Schools is required or authorized
to consider when reviewing a district's budget.

Administrative Regulation 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability
Regulation updated to add a new section - "Lease Accounting," to reflect GASB Statement 87 which, starting
June 15, 2021, changed the rules for the financial reporting of governmental entities' leases, including the
rules for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of such leases in financial statements.

Board Policy 3515 - Campus Security

Policy updated to include that the district regularly review current guidance regarding cybersecurity and
digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the district's processes and procedures
related to the protection of the district's network infrastructure and the monitoring and response to suspicious
and/or threatening digital media content. Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which
requires certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as Governing
Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular basis with
students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or observe any
threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law
enforcement. Additionally, policy also updated to include that anyone who receives or learns of a health or
safety threat related to school or a school activity is encouraged to report the threat to a school or district
administrator, and that school site council's be included with other stakeholders when identifying appropriate
locations for the placement of surveillance cameras.

Administrative Regulation 3515 - Campus Security
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1352, 2021) which authorizes districts to request the Military
Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration Center (Cal-CSIC), to perform an
independent security assessment of the district or an individual district school, NEW LAW (AB 2355, 2022)
which requires districts that experience a cyberattack, which impacts more than 500 students or personnel,
to report the cyberattack to Cal-CSIC, and NEW LAW (8B 906, 2022) which requires certificated and
classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as Governing Board members, whose



duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades
6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat
of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement. Regulation also
updated to provide that monitoring suspicious and/or threatening digital media content be part of the campus
security plan and included in strategies to detect and intervene with school crime.

Administrative Regulation 3516.2 - Bomb Threats

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (P.L. 117-159) which requires the creation of a Federal
Clearinghouse on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices to serve as a federal resource to identify and
publish online practices and recommendations to improve school safety, and include that the district regularly
review current guidance regarding cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended
practices into the district's processes and procedures related to the protection of the district's network
infrastructure and the monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media content.
Regulation also updated to move and amend material regarding staff training, include and align language
with information provided by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, and reflect NEW LAW (SB 906,
2022) which requires certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular
basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or
observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat
to law enforcement.

Board Policy 3540 - Transportation
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which authorizes a district to provide transportation
services by way of a joint powers agreement, a cooperative student transportation program, or a consortium,
and which requires, as a condition of apportionment, a district to adopt a transportation plan that describes
the transportation services to be provided to certain student groups, as specified, by April 1, 2023 and update
the plan annually by April 1.

Board Policy 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments

Policy updated to (1) expand the concept of district provided transportation, (2) reflect NEW LAW (SB 906,
2022) which requires certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular
basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or
observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat
to law enforcement, (3) move language regarding student suspension and expulsion in order to keep related
content together, and (4) add language regarding staff training to align with staff responsibilities to report
potential homicidal acts. Regulation also updated to add headings for the Options regarding tear gas or tear
gas weapons, and to emphasize that for districts that allow students to bring tear gas of tear gas weapons to
school, the student needs to either be accompanied by, or have the written consent, of a parent/guardian.

Administrative Regulation 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments
Regulation updated to expand the list of prohibited weapons and dangerous instruments to include additional
items that are listed in law.

Administrative Regulation 5141.3 - Health Examinations

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2329) which authorizes districts to enter into a memorandum
of understanding with a nonprofit eye examination provider to provide eye examinations and eyeglasses to
students at a school site. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 97) which requires that
beginning on or after January 1, 2023, districts make Type 1 diabetes materials developed by CDE available
to parents/guardians when student is first enrolled in elementary school or as part of certain notifications.
The first note was changed to a Cautionary Note and updated to clarify that the obligation to perform specified
mandated activities is relieved any year that the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement.

Board Policy 5142 - Safety
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (P.L. 117-159) which requires the creation of a Federal Clearinghouse
on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices to serve as a federal resource to identify and publish online



practices and recommendations to improve school safety, and include that the district regularly review current
guidance regarding cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into
the district's processes and procedures related to the protection of the district's network infrastructure and the
monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media content.

Administrative Regulation 5142 - Safety

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which requires certificated and classified
employees of the district, and other school officials such as Governing Board members, whose duties bring
the employee or other school official in contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part
of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal
act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement, and add language regarding staff
responsibilities and training to align with requirement to report potential homicidal acts. Regulation also
updated to add language that anyone who receives or learns of a health or safety threat related to school or a
school activity is encouraged to report the threat to a school or district administrator, reflect NEW LAW (AB
2028, 2022) which authorizes the Board of an elementary, intermediate, junior high, or high school to assist
local law enforcement, nonprofit associations or organizations such as the Girls Scouts, Boys Scouts, and
parent-teacher associations, and public agencies that provide safety instruction related to using electric,
motorized, or nonmotorized bicycles and scooters, to provide such safety instruction to district students, and
NEW LAW (AB 1946, 2022) which requires the Department of the California Highway Patrol to develop,
and post on its web site, by September 1, 2023, statewide safety and training programs based on evidence-
based practices for users of electric bicycles, including general riding safety, emergency maneuver skills,
rules of the road, and laws pertaining to electric bicycles.

Administrative Regulation 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2028, 2022) which authorizes the Governing Board of an
elementary, intermediate, junior high, or high school to provide time and facilities to specified agencies that
offer bicycle, scooter, electric bicycle, motorized bicycle, or motorized scooter safety instruction, and NEW
LAW (AB 1946, 2022) which requires the Department of the California Highway Patrol to develop, by
September 1, 2023, statewide safety and training programs based on evidence-based practices for the use of
electric bicycles, including general riding safety, emergency maneuver skills, rules of the road, and laws
pertaining to electric bicycles.

Board Policy 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs
Policy updated to clarify that it applies to expanded learning opportunities beyond the regular school day,
including before-school, after-school, summer, vacation, and/or intersessional programs and to reflect NEW
LAWS (AB 181, 2022 and AB 185, 2022) which updates the Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO)
program requirements for the 2022-23 school year and forward. Detailed information regarding various
program collaboration requirements moved to AR.

Administrative Regulation 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs

Regulation updated to include definitions of "offer access” and "provide access" in regard to Expanded
Leamning Opportunities (ELO) programs. Detailed information regarding program collaboration
requirements moved to Regulation from BP. Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAWS (AB 181, 2022 and
AB 185, 2022) which updates the ELO program requirements for the 2022-23 school year and forward,
including requirements for the district to offer access to ELO programs based on the district's prior fiscal year
local control funding formula unduplicated pupil percentage. Regulation also updated to clarify that district
that receive funds for classroom-based instructional programs that serve grades TK-6 cannot opt out of the
ELO program funding, pursuant to California Department of Education's "Expanded Learning Opportunities
Program FAQs." Regulation also updated to reflect requirement that ELO programs are required to offer a
nutritional snack, meal, or both and to reflect California Department of Education guidance that ELO
programs do not have an attendance requirement and to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1380, 2022) which
renumbered The California Prekindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant Program, Education Code
8251.5 to 8322.




Board Policy 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAWS (AB 210, 2022, AB 185, 2022 and SB 1047, 2022) to revise and
update requirements for California State Preschool Programs (CSPP), including requirements related to dual
language learners, children with exceptional needs, and enrollment data collection and reporting. Policy also
updated to reflect CSPP-specific NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2022, No. 26).

Administrative Regulation 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAWS (AB 210, 2022, AB 185, 2022, AB 321, 2022, and SB 1047,
2022) which revised enrollment criteria, priorities, and requirements for California State Preschool Programs
(CSPP). Sections of the regulation affected include "Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP
Programs" and "Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Full-Day CSPP Programs," which were reorganized
and revised to comply with law. Other updated sections are "Minimum Hours/Days of Operation" and
"Staffing." Regulation was also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2806, 2022) with new requirements
related to expulsion/unenrollment and/or suspension from a CSPP Program based on behavior. Regulation
also updated with CSPP-specific NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2022, No. 26).

Administrative Regulation 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 188, 2022), requiring each district to designate a main point
of contact for coordinating and completing the transition of a child and family from Part C (Early
Intervention Program for Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities) to Part B (Assistance for Children with
Disabilities) of IDEA.

Board Bylaw 9220 - Governing Board Elections
Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2584, 2022), by adding a new section - "Recalling a Board
Member." Updated Bylaw also revised "Election Process and Procedure" section to reflect NEW LAW (SB
1061, 2022) regarding the requirement that any petition for a special election to fill a Board vacancy include
the county election official's estimate of the cost of conducting the special election.

Board Bylaw 9223 - Filling Vacancies
Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (8B 1061, 2022), by adding a new note and body paragraph at the end
of the "Provisional Appointments” section. Updated Bylaw also reflects New Attorney-General Opinion
on how a vacancy is to be filled when a district's trustee areas have been revised or election method has
changed from "at-large" to "by-trustee area," since the Board member whose term is to be completed was
last elected. The Bylaw also updated to rearrange the Items in "Timelines for Filling a Vacancy" and to
revise as necessary for clarity.

Board Bylaw 9323 - Meeting Conduct
Bylaw Updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1100, 2022) which authorizes the Board President to remove an
individual for disrupting a Board meeting, establishes a procedure for warning the individual prior to their
removal, and defines "disrupting" and "true threat of force."

MINOR REVISION:
Board Policy 3260 - Fees and Charges

Policy updated to include reference to CDE Fiscal Management Advisory 22-01, Summer School, Third
Parties, Tuition Fees, and updates reference to CDE FMA 20-01, Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges.



The Governing Board recognizes its obl

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA. Sample Manual Site

igation to provide a free appropriate public education to all

individuals with disabilities, aged 3 to 21 years, who reside in the district.

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall serve as a Special Education
Local Plan Area (SELPA) pursuant to Education Code 56195.1.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a local plan for the education of individuals with disabilities
residing in the district. The plan shall be approved by the Board and submitted to the county office of
education and the Superintendent of Public Instruction: (SPI). (Education Code 56195.1, 56195.3)

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall participate as a member of a
multi-district Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) pursuant to Education Code 56195.1.

educatron and related semces and cas

=laads for speech and ¥anguage spetsal:sts provndmg services to




children with disabilities ages 3-5 years. District pohmes on these toplcs should be cons:stent with
. policies adopted by the SELPA. - -

The district shall enter into agreements with other members of the SELPA in accordance with Education
Code 56195.1 and 56195.7. Consistent with these agreements, the district shall adopt policies governing
the programs and services it operates. (Education Code 56195.8)

The Superintendent or designee shall work with the other members of the SELPA to develop a local plan
for the education of individuals with disabilities. The plan shall be approved by the Board and the other
members of the SELPA, and shall be submitted to the county office of education and the Superintendent
of Public Instruction.SP1. (Education Code 56195.1, 56195.3)

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall participate as a member of a
Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) with other districts and the county office of education
pursuant to Education Code 56195.1.

The district shall enter into agreements with other members of the SELPA in accordance with Education
Code 56195.1 and 56195.7. Consistent with these agreements, the district shall adopt policies governing
the programs and services it operates. (Education Code 56195.8)

The Superintendent or designee shall work with the other members of the SELPA to develop a local plan
for the education of individuals with disabilities. The plan shall be approved by the Board and the other
members of the SELPA, and shall be submitted to the Superintendent of Public Instruction:SPI.
(Education Code 56195.1)

56836 148 as,amendedgyAB 1~§Chag’ce 52,5 of, 022),
cial et fundmg'each Iecal educational gency

(LEA) generaty neir SE : the SELPA, H“thi_r_ty y s of receivi gthexr ngrtionmentta
report the amount of funding each LEA generate sto member A . ,

accordance with Education Code 56836.148.

;CSBA NOTE The remalnder of thss pol;cy apphes to ail dlstnc:ts

uant ti 61 begi AAl LY. JH!),!% 2@2@ the iocal p!an must be rewewed by the

SEL A at Ieast once every three ears ;The budget plan ser "ce plan and annual assurances support ptan :
must still be rewewed annuailyi pursuant to Educatlon Code 56205 see the accompanymg admimstratwe
regulation. . , . .

The local plan shall be reviewed at least once every three years and updated as needed to ensure the
information contained in the plan remains relevant and accurate. The local plan shall be updated
cooperatively by a committee of representatives of special and regular education teachers and
administrators selected by the groups they represent and with participation by parent/guardian members
of the community advisory committee, or parents/guardians selected by the community advisory



committee, to ensure adequate and effective participation and communication. (Education Code

56195.9)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Educatio

wr’tten procedur: for the ongoing !

n Code 56195.7, a smgfe-distnct SELPA is mandated to adopt a
ev:ew of programs and a mechanlsm for correctmg any identified

; problem Fordis ricts parttcxpatmg ina multx-d;stnct SELPA with or WIthout aCOE pursuant to Optron 2

or3 above these reqwrements are contained in the written agreement entered mto by me mbers of the

SELPA. The followmg paragraph may be revxsed to reﬂect district and/or SELPA practice.

Special education programs and services shall be reviewed on an ongoing basis. The results of such
evaluations shall be used to identify and correct any program deficiencies.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject

matter of the policy.

State
5 CCR 3000-3089

Ed. Code 56000-56001
Ed. Code 56020-56035
Ed. Code 56040-56046
Ed. Code 56048-56050
Ed. Code 56055

Ed. Code 56060-56063
Ed. Code 56170-56177
Ed. Code 56190-56194
Ed. Code 56195-56195.10
Ed. Code 56205-56208
Ed-Code 56213

Ed. Code 5621356211-56214

Ed. Code 56240-56245
Ed. Code 56300-56385
Ed. Code 56440-56447.1

Ed. Code 56500-56508
Ed. Code 56520-5652556524

Description
Regulations governing special education

Education for individuals with exceptional needs
Definitions

General provisions

Surrogate parents

Foster parents

Substitute teachers in special education

Children enrolled in private schools

Community advisory committees

Local plans

Local plan requirements

Special education local plan

Special education local plan areas with small or sparse
populations

Staff development

Identification and referral; assessment, instructional planning

Programs for individuals between the ages of three and five
years

Procedural safeguards, including due process rights

Behavioral interventions



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

CSBA NOTE Pursuant to Education Code 32280-32289.5 .5, districts are respons;b[e for ¢ ensunng that a
ccmprehenswe safety plan w1th specn‘:ed componenytsls in place for ea stnct school.: As, ,

year .

The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus
where they are free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully committed to maximizing
school safety and to creating a positive learning environment that includes strategies for violence
prevention and high expectations for student conduct, responsible behavior, and respect for others.

CSBA NOTE' 5Pursuant to Educatlon Code 32281 and 32286 each school iS requtred to adopt a '

The school site council at each district school shall develop a comprehensive school safety plan relevant
to the needs and resources of that particular school. New school campuses shall develop a safety plan
within one year of initiating operations. (Education Code 32281, 32286)

The school safety plan shall take into account the school's staffing, available resources, and building
design, as well as other factors unique to the site.

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of a districtwide comprehensive safety
plan that is applicable to each school site. (Education Code 32281)

CSBA NOTE: The foﬁowmg two paragraphs apply to all districts. Education Code 32286 requires that
the school site counc:[ review and update the comprehenswe safety plan by March 1 of each year. In
dtstncts with AD/ of 2,500 or less that choose to develop a districtwide plan in accordance with Optson
2 above, the Superintendent or des:gnee may conduct the annual review.

12




Pursuant to Education Code 32288, the updated plan(s) must be submitted to the district for approval.
The Govemlng Board may choose to delegate to the Supenntendent or designee the responsrbthty to
review and approve the updated plans, but the Board remains responsrb!e for ensuring compliance with
the law. . L

The comprehensive safety plan(s) shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 of each year and forwarded
to the Board for approval. (Education Code 32286, 32288)

The Board shall review the comprehensive safety plan(s) in order to ensure compliance with state law,
Board policy, and administrative regulation and shall approve the plan(s) at a regularly scheduled meeting.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32288 requires that districts notify CDE if a school has not complied with
the safety Ian requlrements In the event that the Supenntenc[ent of Public tnstructlon determines that
there has been a willful failure by a district tc ) make any report required by Educatlon Code 32280-
32289, Education Code 32287 provxdes that the district may be fined up to $2,000.

By October 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the California Department of
Education (CDE) of any schools that have not complied with the requirements of Education Code 32281.
(Education Code 32288)

Tactical Response Plan

CSBA NOTE: The foilowmg section is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 32281, the Board may, after
consultlng with law enforcement officials, elect to have the district, rather than the school site councai
develop those portlons of the comprehensuve safety plan that mdude tactlcal responses foa rm;nal
incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury. : : , -

Notwithstanding the process described above, any portion of a comprehensive safety plan that addresses
tactical responses to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury at the school site,
including steps to be taken to safeguard students and staff, secure the affected school premises, and
apprehend the criminal perpetrator(s), shall be developed by district administrators in accordance with
Education Code 32281. In developing such strategies, district administrators shall consult with law
enforcement officials and with representative(s) of employee bargaining unit(s), if they choose to
participate.

When reviewing the tactical response plan, the Board may meet in closed session to confer with law
enforcement officials and approve the tactical response plan, provided that any vote to approve the
tactical response plan is announced in open session following the closed session. (Education Code
32281)

Aeeess to Safety Plan(s) Access and Reporting

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that an updated file of all safety-related plans and materials
is readily available for inspection by the public. (Education Code 32282)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 32281, the Board may
choose to prohibit disclosure of those portions of the comprehens;ve safety plan that include tactical
responses to criminal incidents. ,

However, those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to criminal
incidents shall not be publicly disclosed.

GS%ANQI&%%&%Q@%S%%%WWABW%&W%@M%
comprehensive safety plans with the following entities. 13




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus free
from physical and psychological harm and desires to protect them from the dangers presented by
firearms and other weapons.

Possession of Weapons

The Board prohibits any student from possessing weapons, imitation firearms, or other dangerous
instruments, as defined in law and administrative regulation, in school buildings, on school grounds er
buses, when using district provided transportation, at school-related or school-sponsored activities away
from school, or while going to or coming from school.

: CSBA NOTE Educatlon Ccde 49390 and 49393 as added Qg SB 906 {___144 Statutes of 0222, egurr

If a student is in possession of a prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument which
creates a threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, any employee or other school official who is
alerted to or observes such threat shall immediately report the threat to Jaw enforcement.

Under the power granted to the Board to protect the safety of students, staff, and others on district
property and to maintain order and discipline in the schools, any school employee is authorized to
confiscate any prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument from any student on school
grounds.

CSBA NOTE Pursuant to 20 USC 79@: ”__\[dlstr ct ecexvmg federa!f d d h Eiementa y{ d

Eciucation Code 48902 Whlch egwre the ;grmc;ga§ or des;gne to ot*fx aw enforcement authormes f

vsoiations of Educatlon Code 8900((:} and ﬁ_) and Pena% Code 245, 626 9, and 626.10. 10 ln addttlor -
Education Code 48902 egun’e s the ancrga} or des;gne to | ot@ aw en crcement authorities when. a
student possesses a firearm or explosive or sells or furnishes a fzrearm at schooi For more mformatxon'

i

see AR 5144.1] - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.

121



The principal or designee shall notify law enforcement authorities when any student possesses a
firearm, explosive, or other prohibited weapon or dangerous instrument without permission, sells or
furnishes a firearm, or commits any act of assault with a firearm or other weapon. (Education Code
48902; Penal Code 245, 626.9, 626.10; 20 USC 7961)

CSBA NOTE: Educatlon Code 48915 and 20 USC 7961 requ:re the mandatory expulsion of a student
who has possessed a ﬁrearm brandtshed a knife, or commltted any cfher acts hsted in Educa’uon Code
48915( ). See AR 5144 1- Suspensron and Expulsmn/ Due Process for zrounds for suspenslon a]nd‘, ,
? expulston and expu!s:on proced es. ; o o ‘ -
Unless hefshea student has obtained prior ertten permnssnon as specn"|ed below a student possessing or
threatening others with any weapon, dangerous instrument, or imitation firearm shall be subject to

suspension and/or expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulations.

All staff shall be made aware of their responsibilities regarding the reporting of potential homicidal acts to
law enforcement, and receive training in the assessment and reporting of such threats.

Advance Permission for Possession of a Weapon for Educational Purposes

district.

The parent/guardian of a student who desires to possess a firearm, imitation firearm, or other prohibited
weapon on school grounds for an educational purpose shall submit a written request to the principal, at
least five school days in advance of the planned possession; subrit a written reguest to the principal
which explains the planned use of the weapon and the duration: Fhe student shall alse subsmit, together
with a written explanation from the staff person responsible for the school-sponsored activity or class.

The principal may grant permission for such possession when he/she determines that itit is determined
that possession of a firearm, imitation firearm, or other prohibited weapon on school grounds is necessary
for a school-sponsored activity or class or as part of the educational program. Factors that shall be
considered include, but are not limited to, the planned use of the weapon, the duration and location of
the planned use, whether an audience is expected, and any perceived adverse effects to the safety and
well-being of students or staff. If the principal grants such permission, he/she shall provide the student
and staff person shall be provided with a written explanation regarding any limitations and the
permissible duration of the student's possession.

When the principal or designee grants permission, he/she shall take all necessary precautions shall be
taken to ensure the safety of all persons on school grounds and the safe keeping of the weapon, 122



~including, but not limited to, inspecting a firearm to verify that no live ammunition is present. Any
permitted weapon allewed shall be stored in a locked vehicle or in an appropriate, locked container
before and after its authorized use.

AAny student granted permission to possess a weapon may be suspended and/or expelled if he/she
possesses or uses the weapon is possessed or used inappropriately.

Possession of Pepper Spray

CSBA NOTE: Penal Code 22815 aﬂows mmors age 16 or older to purchase and possess tear gas or tear.
gas weapons for purposes of self- defense if they are accompamed by a parent/guardlan or have the
wntten consent of theH:a parent/guarduan Optlon 1 below; is for use by d;stncts that allow students to
brmg such defenswe :tems to school; and reﬂects the f-aet that a student can be dsscrplmed under -
Educatzon Code 48900 or48915 if such an item is used for a pu rpose other than sehc defense Optlon 2
is for use by dlstncts that prohlbi students from brmgmg such i items to school. - ~

(Districts that allow students to bring tear gas or tear gas weapons)

When accompanied by a parent/guardian or with the written consent of a parent/guardian, students age
16 or older may legally possess tear gas or tear gas weapons such as pepper spray for the purpose of self-
defense. However, such students shall be subject to suspension and/or expulsion if they use such items
are used inappropriately or for any purpose other than self-defense.

. {Districts that prohibit students from bringing tear gas or tear gas weapons)

To prevent potential misuse that may harm students or staff, students are prohibited from carrying tear
gas or tear gas weapons such as pepper spray on campus or at school activities.

Reporting of Dangerous Objects

%ng%e%eeshe&dbemeé%éteeeﬂeeté%&e@meﬁee

The Board encourages students to promptly report the presence of weapons, injurious objects, or other
suspicious activity to school authorities. The identity of a student who reports such activity shall remain
confidential to the extent permitted by law.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies designed to facilitate student reporting of the
presence of injurious objects on school grounds, such as tip hotlines, electronic transmissions, or other
methods that preserve the student's anonymity. Incident reports and records shall not identify the
student who reported the possession. The Superintendent or designee alse shall also inform staff,
students, and parents/guardians that students who report the presence of injurious objects on school
campuses are to be protected and their identity shielded.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Assaciation, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

123




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

CSBA NOTE The d!strrct should revrse the followmg admrmstratnve reguiat;on to reflect the -

xganded learnmg ggortumty [Qrograms2 ncludmg before and/or after school program(s}L lt
offers and the grade ievels at wh!ch the programs are offered In addltaon to the program - |
requrrements descrrbed be&ow before school and after school 'progra"\' S may be subject to other ,
'drstnct pohc:es such as BP/AR 5148 Child Care ‘nd Deveiopm nt R 3514 2 - Integrated Pest
Management and BP/AR 3550 Food Servrce/Chrld Nutrition Program. The distrlct should
consu!t CSBA Drs’mct and County Offrce of Educatron Meg,aj Servi or drstnct !egal counsel rf rt
‘has questtons regardmg the apphcabihty of other Iaws to the d!stnct s'pmgrams '

Defnnltlons

Expanded learning opportunities means before school, after school, summer, er intersessienvacation,
and/or intersessional learning programs that focus on developing the academic, social, emotional,
and physical needs and interests of students through hands-on, engaging learning experiences.
Expanded learning opportunities does not mean an extension of instructional time, but rather,
opportunities to engage students in enrichment, play, nutrition, and other developmentally
appropriate activities. (Education Code 8482.1, 46120)

Offer access, with regard to an Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) program, means to recruit,
advertise, publicize, or solicit through culturally and linguistically effective and appropriate
communication channels. (Education Code 46120)

Provide access, with regard to an ELO program, means to register or enroll a student in an EL
program. (Education Code 46120)

Unduplicated student means a student enrolled in a district who is either classified as an English
learner, eligible for a free or reduced-price meal, or is a foster youth. (Education Code 42238.02,
46120)

Grades KTK-9

CSBA NOTE The foﬂowmg section is for use by dis Ericts prov:dmg before- schcbi and/or after-
schoo! programs funded by the state After Schoo! Educatlon and Safe :y Pr ogram (ASES)
(Educat:on Code 8482 8484 65} the federa! 21st Century Commumty Leammg Center ,
ﬁregramprogram (21st CCLC) (Educatlon Code 8484.7- 8484 9: 20 USC 7171 7176) or the -
Expanded Learnmg Opportumtxes ngram (ELO) pregram (Educatmn Code 46120)

ASES and Zist CCLC programs serve students who arein grades K 9 in an elementary, midd!e or
junior high school. ,

172



The district's After School Education and Safety (ASES) program or 21st Century Community
Learning Center (21st CCLC) program shall serve students in any of grades KTK-9 as the district
may determine based on local needs. (Education Code 8482.3, 8484.7, 8484.75, 8484.8)

The district's 21st CCLC program shail primarily serve students in Title | schoolwide programs.
(Education Code 8484.8; 20 USC 7173)
The district's ELO program shall serve students in grades TK-6. (Education Code 46120)

CSBA NOTE The foilowmg ggragranhs reflect the extent to Wthh a before/after school Qrograms
nc!udmg ASES, 215t CCLC and ELO p_r:grams, require colla Joratnve planmgg_ Drstricts may revise
the foliowmg paragraphs to reﬂect pro Brams offered by the dist rict] f .

The district's programs shall be planned through a collaborative process that includes
parents/guardians, students, and representatives of participating schools, governmental agencies,
including city and county parks and recreation departments, local law enforcement, community
organizations, and the private sector. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may include
other stakeholders in such collaborative process. {(Education Code 8482.5, 8484.75, 46120)

CSBA NOTE_ Educatlon Code 46120 as aééeéamended by AB &—39181 (Ch 4452 Statutes of -

The foliowmg paragraph is for dxstncts that recelve’ ELO funds and Should be deieted by dlstnc s ,
that do no’c rece;ve such funds However, the Cahforma Degartmen of Education 5 fCDE), '

ciassroom based mstructzona% grogram that serve grade TK é cannot _p* out of the ELO
program undmg

%mmmmwwmwmm%%
For the 2024-22For the 2022-23 school year, the district shall offer access to ELO programs to all
unduplicated students in grades TK-6 and provide access to such programs to at least 50 percent of
enrolled unduplicated students. Commeneing with the 202223 school year; the district shall effer
all students in grades TK-6 aceess to ELO programs; and ensure that aceess is previded to any
student whose parentiguardian reguests placement in a program: -(Education Code 46120)

173



CSBA NOTE: Beginning with the 2023-24 school year, ‘Option 1 below is for use by;districts witha
prior fiscal year LCFF UPP of at !east 75 percent Qp fion 2 is for districts with g_fp‘rior fiscal year
LCFF UPP of less than 75 percent. ‘ ' - :

Commencing with the 2023-24 school year, the district shall offer access to the ELO program to all
classroom-based students in grades TK-4. The district shall provide access to any student whose
parent/guardian requests placement in an ELO program.

The district shall offer access to the ELO program to all classroom-based unduplicated students in
grades TK-6. The district shall provide access to any unduplicated student whose parent/guardian
reqguests placement in an ELO program,

CSBA NOTE Eéoeaﬂeo@ede%asaédeéby%é%@anéame&deéby%%él%@h—%%

P!annmg and lmplr_ mer\tatron Grant Programl estabhshed Qursuant to celop ap#aﬁEducatson '
Code 8322 p_rov:de foreeneréeraﬂenby%hegearéa%aeubhemeeaﬁgeﬁerbe%ereﬁne%

B s F vt pre > Y5€ ,eariy !earnmg aﬁée&FeaFegFame— o
mztiatwe w:t eigoal of exgandmg access to clas oeom%based grekmdergarten grograms SeeBP
6170 1- Transcttona! Kmdergarten - - - .

The Supermtendent or designee shall ensure that the plan to prowde access to full day !earmng
programs the year before kindergarten addresses the needs of children and their families as
specified in BP 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten. (Education Code 8284-58322)

CSBA NOTE Pursuant to Education Code 8484 75 programs funded through the 21st C..LC
program are general!y subject to the same program requxrements apphcable to ASES programs ,
wrth the excepts ne 'specrﬂed provrsmns prsmarlly reiated to allocation of funds— . coﬂabora’uon2
and data coilethoo ln“contrast ELO programs are. exphatly subject to some but not aH of the :
ASES requrrements pursuant to Educatron Code 46120 However the Ca!;forma Department of
Educatlon 5 (CDE} ) “Expanded Leammg Opportumt!es FAQS . emphasxzes that drstncts are
expected to umformly app!y the strtcter ASES reqmrements to aH programs smce ASES 215t
CCLC and ELO programs should be consrdered a smg!e comprehens;ve program. As su*h the
'foilowmg sect!on reﬂects the expectat;on that ELO programs w ill comply w;th all the req urrements
for ASES and 21st CCLC programs ~ :

The fo!iowmg section apphes to ASES, 21st CCLC and ELO programs, except where otherw:se
noted, and should be revised to reflect the program(s) offered by the district.

The district's ASES, 21st CCLC, and ELO program(s) shall be operated in accordance with the
following:

174



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 5148.2: Before/After School Programs Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopied Date: 11/01/2006 | Last Revised Date: 12/01/20242022 | Last Reviewed
Date: 12/01/20212022

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy.is for use by districts providing expanded leariing
opportunities beyond the regular school day, including before-school and/oer, after-school,
summer, vacation, and/or intersessional programs, and should be revised to reflect the program(s)
offered by the district. For eligible programs in grades KT1K-9, the district may apply for funding
from the state's After School Education and Safety Program (ASES) (Education Code 8482-
8484.65) and/or the federal 21st Century Community Learning GenterCenters Program (21st
CCLC) (Education Code 8484.7-8484.9; 20 USC 7171-7176). The federal 21st Century High
School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens Program (ASSETs) (Education Code 8420-
8428; 20 USC 7171-7176) provides funding for eligible programs in grades 9-12. These programs
ate optional and have different reguirements.

Education Code 46120, as addedamended by AB 430181 (Ch. 4452, Statutes of 2021).
es%abhsheszil}zwg and AB 185 (Ch. 571, Statutes of 2022), provides for the Expanded Learning
Opportunities (ELO) Program and allocates funding to districts under a formula based on a
district’s average daily attendance and percentage of unduplicated students and average daily
attendanece: | ée?;eeé as any student who s eligible for free or reduced-price meais, who ;g an
English learner, or who is a foster youth. For the 2024-222022-23 school year, districts receiving
funds are required to offer access to ELO programs to all unduplicated students in grades TK-6
and to provide access to such programs to at least 50 percent of enrolled unduplicated students.
Commencing twith the 2022-232023-24 school year, districts receiving fundswith a prior fiscal
vear local control fzmemg formula (LCEF) unduplicated pupil percentage (UPP) of at least 75
percent are required to offer access to ELO programs to all classroon «bsgeg:f students in grades
TK-6 inclusive, and to ensure that access is provided to any student whose parent/guardxan
requests placement in an ELO program. Commencing with the 2023~ 24 school year, districts with
a prior fiscal year %.,CFF UPP of less than 75 percent are required to inﬁi access to ELO programs.
to all unduplicated students in grades TK-6, inclusive, and ensure that access is provided to any
unduplicated student whese parent/guardian requests placement in an ELO program. Pursuant to
Education Code 46120, on school days, ELO programs must include in-person before or after
school programs and, on non- -school days, intersessionintersessional programs of speciﬁed lengths
of time as described below and in the accompanying administrative regulation. Student
participation inan ELO program is optional; however, districts may not optout of the ELO

Program.

See the accompanying administrative regulation for major requirements of each program,

The following policy is applicable to all four programs, unless otherwise noted, and may be
adapted by districts that offer other programs through district funding or alternative sources. If
the district does not offer both a before-any programs bevond the regular school and after-school
programday; it may modify the following policy as appropriate.

161




LRSS = S LA LN

program in a supervised environment. In order to increase academ|c achievement of participating
students, the content of such programs shall be coordinated with the district's vision and goals for
student learning, local control and accountability plan, curriculum, and academic standards.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph reflects a requirement for requirements related to
collaborative planning for beththe programs offered by the district, The ASES program (Education
Code 8482.5) and), ASSETs program (Education Code 8422) ), 21st CCLC programs must be
develeﬁed inmogram (Educat’@n Code 8484.75), and ELO program (Edpcaf'or‘ C‘odg 46120) %}ave

rRay revise the fe#ewmg paragraph to reflect d%“mc—t practiceaccompanyving administrativ

regulation.

TFhe distriet'sEach program offered by the districtshall be planned through a collaborative process
required by law enforeement; community organizations; and; if apprepriate; the private sector.
{Education Code 8422, 8482.5, 8484.75. 46120)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.
Pursuant to Education Code 46120; as added by AB 130, districts are required to prioritize ELO
programs.at school sites:in the lowest income communities, as determined by prior year
percentages of students eligible for. free and reduced-price meals; while maximizing the number of
schools and neighborhoods with expanded learning eppertunitiestLO programs across their
attendance area. In addition, pursuant to Education Code 8482.5, in awarding funding for ASES
programs, the state gives priority to schools with at least 50 percent of students eligible for free
or reduced-price meals. Pursuant to 20 USC 7174, funding for the 21st CCLC and ASSETs
programs.isrestricted to schools receiving federal Title I funding. - In-addition, 20.USC. 7174 and
Education Code 8422 and 8484.8 give competitive priority for these federal programs to
applications jointly submitted by school districts and community organizations for programs that
(1) are located in schools that are implementing comprehensive or targeted support and
improvement activities pursuant to 20 USC 6311 or other schools determined by the district to be
in-need of intervention and-support to improve student academic achievement.and other
outcomes: (2) serve students at risk for academic failure, dropping out of school, involvement in
criminal.or delinquent activities, or lacking strong positive role models; (3) provide activities not
otherwise accessible to participating students or expand accessibility to high-quality services that
may be available in the community; (4) continue or expand existing grants; and (5) for-21st CCLC
programs, provide year-round expanded learning programming. -For a further description of
competitive priority for funding, see the California Department of Education's (CDE) "21st CCLC
and ASSETs FAQs'" and "Request for Applications for Pregrams Propesing to Serve High School
Students 215t CCLC & ASSETs.

schools and/or programs that serve low-income and other at-risk students.

162




Learning Opportunities Program (ELO) or any other program to be established pursuant to
Education Code 8421, 8482.3 or, 8484.75, or 46120, shall be approved by the Board and the

principal of each participating schoel.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is applicable to all programs. ‘Pursuant to
Education Code 8483.4 (applicable to beth ASES and, 21st CCLC, and ELO programs), the
program administratoris required to-establish qualifications for each staff position that, at a
minimum, ensure that all staff members who directly supervise students meet the minimum
qualifications for an instructional aide pursuant to district policies; see the accompanying
administrative regulation. A district offering-an ASSETs program must establish its expectations
for staff qualifications.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff who directly supervise students in the
district's before-school andlor after-school programexpanded learning opportunity programs
possess appropriate knowledge and experience. As needed, staff and volunteers shall receive
ongoing training related to their job responsibilities.

Eaeh Each before-school, after-school, summer, vacation or intersessional expanded learning
opportunity program shall include academic and enrichment elements in accordance with law and
administrative regulation. In addition, each program may include support services that reinforce
the educational component and promote student health and well-being.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 8482.6 (applicable to ASES, 21st CCLC, and ELO programs) and
Education Code 8422 (applicable to ASSETs programs) authorize the district to charge fees to
participating families with certain exceptions as described-below.

Option 1 below is for use by districts that choose not to charge family fees. Option 2 is for use by
districts that will charge a permissible family fee to cover unfunded costs of the program.

A family fee may be charged to participating families based on the actual cost of services.

} CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts selecting Option:2 that offer an
ASSETS program, and may be modified to reflect program(s) offered by the district.  Pursuant to
Education Code 8422, ASSETs programs that charge fees to participating families are required to
waive or reduce the fees for families with students who are eligible for free or reduced-price

" meals.

However, for the ASSETs program, a family fee shall be waived or reduced for families with
students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals. (Education Code 8422)

163




CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts selecting Option 2 that offer an ASES,
21st.CCLC program; and/or ELO program, and may be modified to reflect program(s) offered by
the district.: Pursuant to Education Code 8482.6; as amended by AB 130, family fees. may not be
charged for these programs for a student who is eligible for free or reduced-price meals or if the
district knows the participating student'is'a homeless youth or in foster care. In addition, a
program that charges-such fees is required to schedule fees ona sliding scale that considers family
income and ability. to pay.

For ASES, 21st CCLC, and/or Expanded Learning Opportunities! rograms, no fee shall be

charged for a student who is eligible for free or reduced-price meals,"or a student who the district
knows is a homeless youth or in foster care. In addition, family fees shall be calculated on a sliding
scale that considers family income and ability to pay. (Education Code 8482.6, 46120)

CSBA NOTE: The remainder.of this policy is for use by districts that selected either-Option 1or2
above.

The following optional paragraph is for use by districts with programs serving students ages 11-12
years. Welfare and Institutions Code 10273, as renumbered by AB 131 (Ch. 116, Statutes of
2021); provides that the preferred placement for students ages 11-12 years is in a before-school
or after-school program rather than in subsidized child care and development services. When
subsidized child care services are also available, students ages 11-12 years will be eligible for
subsidized child care services only for the portion of care that is not available in a before-school or
after-school program. See AR 5148 - Child Care and Development.

Eligible students who are 11 or 12 years of age shall be placed in a before-school or after-school
program, if and when available, rather than subsidized child -care and development services.
During the time that the before-school or after-school program does not operate, such students
may be provided the option of enrolling in child -care and development services in accordance with
the enrollment priorities established in AR 5148 - Child Care and Development. (Welfare and
Institutions Code 10273)

CSBA NOTE: The following: optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.

Standards for Expanded Learning in California; Creating and Implementing a Shared Vision of
Quality: . In addition, CDE's publication , "A Crosswalk Between the Quality Standards for
Expanded Learning and Program Quality Assessment Tools” describes available assessment tools
that are closely aligned with the program standards. These publications are available on CDE's ,

To the extent consistent with state and federal privacy laws, Education Code 8484.1 authorizes
the district to share specified student data (i.e., school day attendance data, statewide assessment
scores English language development test placement or reclassification scores, California Healthy
Kids Survey results in aggregate form, student engagement and behavioral data, and other
academic measures, including grades and course completion) with the operator of an after-school
program with-which the district has a contract thatincludes a confidentiality- agreement. The

164




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

f CSBA NOTE: The ollowmg yla s option al. The ﬂlllng of elective offices mvolves senous issues of

| cons’cltutlonal and s tatutom concerns Any __strlct with guestlon related to local electtons should consult

g CSBA Drstnct and County Office of Education Legal Services or d:strrct legal counsel

Board Member Qualifications

CSBA NOTE: Educatron Code 35107 and Electlons Code 20 detail elrglblllty for Govermng Board
me bershlp asspecnﬁed below'i In 81 Ops Cal Atty Gen 98 (199‘8} the Al:tomey ,General opmed that

felony, or ofﬁmal notlﬂcatron that the voter is reglstered to vote 'n another country or' :ta

Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if he#shethe
person is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district or, if applicable,
the trustee area, a registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office. Any person who
has been convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, embezzlement or
theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such crime, under California law or
the law of another state, the United States of America, or another country, is not eligible to be a
candidate for office or elected as a Board member except when he/shethe person has been granted a
pardon in accordance with law. (Education Code 35107; Elections Code 20)

CSBA NOTE Pursuant to Educatron Code 35107 a district employee electecl to serve on the dtstnc’c ;
'Bo ”d must resrgn hﬁ%herfr” ‘the employment before bemg swom mto off' ce as a 0: rd m ber -

‘Pursuant to Education Code 1006 employees of a school dlstrtct are elrgrble to runvfor the county board

of educatlon seat as long as thelr school d'strrct employer rs not w:thin i:he 1unsd!c’cron of the county
board. ' , , ; o ,

A dlStrICt employee elected to the Board shall resign hls#herfrom district employment before being sworn
in or shall have histherthe employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office.
{Education Code 35107)

CSBA NOTE: The followmg paragraph is optlonal See CSBA's web srte for mformatlon about school
board service that may be shared with candidates.

The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board members The
Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with information that will enable them to
understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board member, including information

238




regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all
candidates with the county election official's contact information and general information about school
programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities.

Recalling a Board Member

inten intention to Clrculat" recail getmo b_y Qi‘og onent ho must be eglstered voters of the board

member s etectoral ;unsdlction Elections CodeilOZOl as amended amended _tgj AB 2584 (___ 792 Statutes of

~ 02222 Qemf:e the number of p rogonent' at must be hsted on the notxce de endmg on the number of
eglstered voters inthe e!ectorahunsd;ctto mVoived . - ' :

U’!

A Board member may be recalled as permitted by Elections Code 11000, Proponents of a recall are
required to serve, file, and publish or post a notice of intention to circulate the recall petition and to
comply with other applicable law and formalities and county elections official directives. The petition,
pursuant to Elections Code 11041, is required to be in the format provided by the Secretary of State and
to include an estimate of the cost of conducting the special election, as determined by the county
elections official, in consultation with the district.

Within 14 days after the meeting at which the Board receives a certificate of sufficiency of signatures on

a recall petition from the county elections official, the Board shalf order an election to be held to
determine whether the Board member named in the petition shall be recalled. The election shall be held
not less than 88, nor more than 125, days after the date that the Board orders the election. However, the
election may be conducted within 180 days after the issuance of the Board's order to consolidate the
election with a regularly scheduled election.

Recall elections shall be conducted in accordance with Elections Code 11381-11386.

Consolidation of Elections

CSBA NOTE T’he’ foﬁowmg optconat section i is. for di trtcts that currently hold thelr Board electsons at a
tlme that IS not 'oncurrent wzt mumc:pai or stat e eiect:ons . - ; -

Educatson Code 5000 and Electlons Code 1302 requ:re the ‘regu!ar electton of Board members to be

: ',, i 15 er‘of eac 'odd numbered year However m
raccordancew;th Election Code 1302 and 10404 5, districts are authorized to request consolidation of
their Board ele*t"" wit he local mumcnpal or state primary or generai eiectton by adopting a Board
resolutlon and submlttmg itto the County Board of Supervasors for approval. Within 30 days followmg
approval by the County Board of Superv:sors the e!ections ofﬁcra¥ will notlfy all reglstered voters m the
district of the change of election date. ' ~ . ,

To reduce costs associated with conductlng elections, the Board may consolidate Board electnons W|th
the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in accordance with Elections Code 1302.

239



CSBA NOTE Pursuant fo Electrons Code 14051-14052, as addedley SB 445 (Ch. 235; Sta%utes of
2@4—59— drstncts are requrred to holcl elections. concurrent with statewide elections rf holdmg
nonconcurrent elections has prevrously resulted ina' srgmflcant cecrease in voter turnout Pursuant fo
Elections Code 140)1 a srgmﬁcant decrease has occurred when voter turnout fora regularly scheduled
electlon held on a nonconcurrent date i is at least 25 percent less than the average local tumout for the
prevrous four statewrde general elections A drs%eeie tha% helels Bearel eleetrees ether— thae on a sta%‘ewlde
ehasaéepteeaplan@e f‘ RSO jj,j eleetrensbyNwemberS—QGQ%ltr&reeemmenéed%hatds#ret ,
‘eetmselaed—aeneeessaefereeareaedaeeroveeelaeby 2Rt %%mmwe%hareleeeeetea
s%ecewele election elate— Fora further analysrs of SB 4%5 see CSBA' ‘ “Legal Alert on the lmpact of
Senate Blll No 415 on School Board Electlons* .

‘D;strrc s consohdatmg thelr electlons due to low voter turnoutshould follow the procedures specrﬁed in

Elections Code 1302, lncludmg the adoption of a Board resolutron

In addition, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a statewude electlon date results in
a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the average local turnout for the
previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take action to consolidate Board elections with
statewide elections. Fhe district shall move its election to the next state statewide election date; unless
the Board has adopted a plan by January 1; 2018 to conselidate Board elections net later than the
November 8; 2022 statewide general eleetion: (Elections Code 14051, 14052)

In order to consolidate elections based on either circumstance described above, the Board shall adopt a
resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors for approval not later than 240 days prior to
the date of the currently scheduled district election. (Elections Code 10404.5)

Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, the terms of
office of incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next applicable election.

{Elections Code 10404.5)

Elections Process and Procedures

CSBA NOTE: Any drstnct that selects Optxon 2or3 should ensure: that its dec sion is consrstent with
Electrons Code 14025 14032 (the California Votmg nghts Act (CVRA)}iL whrch prohrblts the use of the
"at- large votmg method for elections wrthm 3ur|sd1ctlons wrth a htstory of "racrally polarlzed votlng" (i.e.,
'drfference betw en voters ofa protected class and voters in the rest of the junsdtctron in the choice of
ccandrdates preferred) AH¥ élsfeeet seelemg mere mter-ma%ree about %he G\LRA aeel its eessrlale e#eets

The district is divided into trustee areas and each trustee area shall be represented by a Board member
who resides in and is elected by voters residing within that trustee area. Trustee areas shall be balanced
by population as required by state and federal law.

Prior to March 1 following the year in which the results of each decennial federal census are released, the
Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district's trustee areas based on population figures as validated
by the Population Research Unit of the Department of Finance. (Education Code 5019.5)

240



CSBA NOTE: Any district that selects Option 2 or 3 should ensure that its decision is consistent with
Elections Code 14025- 14032 {the California. Voting nghts Act (CVRA)) which prohibits the use of the
“at- targe votmg method for electnons within jurisdictions w1th a history of "racially polarized voting" (i ( ,
dlﬁ‘erence between voters of a protected class and voters in the rest of the jurisdiction in the choice Of‘
czaynum ates preferred) Any district seeking more information about the CVRA and its possible effects

Board members may reside anywhere within the district's boundaries and shall be elected by all voters in
the district.

CSBA NOTE The extent, ff, any, to which a district using the "from trustee area/hybrid” method (Ophon ,
3) |s requured to balance its trustee areas‘ ay populatfon is unclear: see Dusch V. Baw& Any d—i&‘éﬁe‘é using
, Wcon i e | reraing whein %ebl +ts by , ,

Each Board member shall reside within the trustee area that he/shethe Board member represents but
shall be elected by all voters in the district.

,;CSBA NOTE The #emande; of this see’&enfoiiowmg paragraph is for districts using Optlon 2o0r3and
ect dlstnct practsce Such dls’cr;cts shoufd penod:cai!y momtor the demographlcs

'mcurredf'm supportmg the wntten notlce

To ensure ongoing compliance with the Cahforma Votmg nghts Acts, the Board may review the dlstrnct 5
Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary due to changes in the
district's population or any of its racial, color, or language minority group composition. The review shall
be based on the Superintendent or designee’s report to the Board after the release of each decennial
federal census.

CSBA NOTE: Converting from an "at- farge" (Option 2) toa "by trustee area” (Optlon 1 votmg method
mvolves compiex issues of law regardmg matters such as the redrawmg of 1 maps required approvals and
transmon dates. Electlons Code 10010; as amenéeé by AB 350 (Ch F3s S%a%u%es of 294:é}~ requires the
:Board to hold hearmgs before and after drawmg maps of the proposed district boundanes to aﬂow for
public mput If Board members wxll be elected at dtfferent times for staggered terms of ofﬂce hearings
held after pubifshmg the draft map(s) are requsred to include an o p_pertumty for pubhc input regardmg
the proposed sequence of elections. Aﬂy district that is eeﬁsmieﬁng w%eh+ng to a —by tms%ee areat
eieeheﬁ methed shea%e consult 4ega4 ceunsel as necessary:

HWhen the district’s election method is to be changed, the Board determines that a change is necessary
# shall hold public hearings in accordance with Elections Code 10100 before adopting a resolution at an

241



open meeting specifying the change(s), and shall, in accordance with Education Code 5019, obtain
approval from the county committee on school district organization having jurisdiction over the district.

CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this section is for all dist ricts The Attorney General opined in 105

stri tcharg__ from ‘“at- !arg elec’c;ons to “by~truste area electxons and a vacancy then ar:ses in

pS. Cal Atty.Gen. 182 §20222 that when 1 the boundarles of a dls‘mct s trustee areas are a d;usted

|r:z. n

a
seat held !g_x a Board member whose term of office began Q!‘IO to the hang ein boundarres or elec: ion

method the vacancy shouid be fmed smg the boundanes or electton method b fvhtch the incu mbent

'Board member was elected Any district that hasa ready dogte a ‘by- trustee €l ectnon methoc should
revise the following paragraph accordingly. o

——

The election method or trustee-area boundaries in effect at the beginning of a Board member’s term shall

b used when any vacancy that occurs during that term is to be filled, even if, during the term, the district

has adopted “by-trustee area” election method or trustee area boundaries have been adjusted.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Educatxon Code 5091, as amended by SB 1061 (Ch. 831,"Svtatutes of 2022),

' any petition nforas special election must contain the county =£ectlons offrma s estimate of the cost of
_conducting the Qecua! election, xgressed on a per-student basrs‘ - o o

Any petition for a special election ordered pursuant to Education Code 5091 shall contain the county
election official’s estimate of the cost of conducting the special election, expressed on a per-student
basis. (Education Code 5091)

Campaign Conduct

CSBA NOTE Education Code 35177 has Iong authorxzed boards by resolutron to hmlt campargn

oung Ofﬁce of' ducatro ; egai Servmes or drstr:ct:lega{ counsei m order to ensure that the dlstrlct'
limits sat{sfy egal restrrct&ons - o , e . - ,

All candidates, including current Board members runmng as mcumbents shall abtde by local county
state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donations, funding, and expenditures.

CSBA NOTE The fol!owmg paragraph is optlonal Govemment Code 85300 genera!iy prohibits the
expendrture of pubhc funds for the purpose of seekmg eiect:ve ofﬁce However as amenéeéby&g

publlc funds for the purpose of seekmg electrve ofﬁce n” the Board estabitshes a dedicated fund for that
purpose, provrded that both {1) the public funds are avarlabie to all qualn‘ted votuntan y part:crpatmg
cand:dates for the same ofﬁce without regard to mcumbency or pohtncai party preference and (2) the
Boarc has estabhshed cntersa for determining a candidate’s quairfrcatlons For school board elect:ons
candtdate quahﬁcatlons are spec:ﬁed in state law (see section "Board Member Quaitﬂcat;ons“ above)
and districts should not establish additional qualification requxrements I is recommended that the
Memwmm%mammmmmmgmwmm

242



A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the purpose of
seeking elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for those seeking election to
the Board, provided that the funds are available to all candidates who are qualified pursuant to Education
Code 35107 without regard to incumbency or political preference. (Government Code 85300)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Elections Code 20440, county election officials are requrred fo present each
'candrdate runnmg for public offrce with a voluntary Code of Fair Campalgn Practices for the candsdate
to sign. The pledge states the candldate s intent to conc uct histherthe campaign op =n!y and. farrly and
provrdes that the candrdate may not use or permrt nega tive pre}udrce based on another candrdate s race,
rehgron phys;cal or mental dssablhty, sex, gender gender ;dentrty gender expressron, sexuai orientation,
or any other pmhrbrted category of drscnmmatron listed in Govemment Code 12940. Although neither
the drstrlct nor opposmg candxdates have authorrty to em‘orce the pledge if it is violated, a candlu‘ te'
signature is a matter of pubhc record. The foi!owmg optsonal paragraph expresses the Board's desrre
that candidates for Board membership sign and abide by the terms of the pledge. '

S

In order to help protect the public’s trust in the electoral process as well as the public's confldence in the
Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to the principles in the Code of
Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440.

Statement of Qualifications

On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or histher
designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the county elections
official describing both of the following: (Elections Code 10509)

1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if any, are
for the balance of an unexpired term

2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of qualifications
pursuant to Elections Code 13307

CSBA NOTE Purs‘u‘ant to E!ectrc ns Code 13307, the candrdate statement is Ixmnted to 200 words
(Optxon 1 beiow) unless the Board has authorized an mcrease to a 400 word maximum (Optron 2
below).

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the
voter’s pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 words. (Elections Code

13307)

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the

voter's pamphlet. {Elections Cede 433074

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for
inelusion in the veter's pamphlet: Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 400 words.
(Elections Code 13307)

243



CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by any district that authorizes electronic
dlstnbut:on of candidate statements in addition to or instead of the mailed voter's pamphlet. Pursuant to
Electlons Code 13307 a voter may receive by marl a voter s pamphlet that contains candidate
statements or, when authorlzed by the electlons ofﬂcral may opt to obtain the voter' s pamphlet and
related matenals electromcally le., from the electlons offi clal s web site or via email). If a candidate
chooses to submlt a statement for electromc distnbut;on only, it will not appear in the mailed voter's
Pamphlet , . - - .

When electronlc dlstnbutron is authonzed by the electrons ofﬁcral drstncts may choose pursuant to
Electlons Code 13307 as ameﬂdeé by AB 2040 (Ch: —1—28- S%‘atutes of Qgécé)— whe%her or -netwhether to
permit Board candrdates to prepare a slatem ent for electromc d|stnbutrcn The followmg paragraph may
be revxsed to reﬂect dustrlct practice. o - L - .
When the elections official allows for the electronlc dlStI‘lbUtlon of candldate statements, a candldate for
the Board may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for inclusion in the mailed
voter's pamphlet, prepare and submit a candidate statement for electronic distribution.

CSBA NOTE Prror to the begmmng of the nommatmg penod Electlons Code 13307— as amended lay AB
29—19 (Gh—&%g-sieaeutes ef Qe&é% requ:res the Board to detet mme whether to have the drstnc’c assume '
the osts of producmg candldate statements or to charge s drdates for the costs regardless of .
ether the statements are for hard copy or electrdmc distribution. In 85 Ops Cal. Atty.Gen. 49 (2002)
the Attorney General opme‘ ,at‘ Electlons Cocle 13307 whrchJauthorrzes the dlstnct to pay for the

Optronml"‘below is for dlstnc’cs that assume l:he costs assocrated Wlth producmg candldate statements
and :Optson 2i is for dlstncts that charge candrdates for the costs The followmg optlons may be revrsed

The district shall pay the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, and/or electronically distributing
candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307.

The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or electronically
distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a condition of having
candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter's pamphlet, the district may
require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these costs to the district in advance pursuant
to Elections Code 13307.

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections

244




CSBA NOTE: Educatlon Code 5016 reqmres the Board to decide, before conducting any election,
whether a potential tie wall be resolved by lot or by a runoff electlon Optlon 1 prowdes for the use of
lots to determine the wmner in case of a tie in every eiectlon Option 2 prov ,es fora runoff election in
every electlon and Optlon 3is for use by dlstrlcts that will make thls determ nation pnor to each
e!ectlon ~ ~ f o

Educa’czon Code 5016 requ:res the County Supermten ent yo'f St'hoblsto proVide yce;‘rtiﬁcation ofatie
vote in an election to the district Board. ‘ ' f ~

Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to
the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and
place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before the Board. The Board at that
time shall determine the winner by lot. (Education Code 5016)

Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to
the Board, the Board shall schedule a runoff election in accordance with law. (Education Code 5016)

Before each election, the Board shall decide whether to resolve a potential tie by lot or by a runoff
election. If the Board has decided to resolve a tie by lot, the Board shall, immediately after the election,
notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and place where the candidates or their
representatives should appear before the Board. The Board at that time shall determine the winner by lot.
If the Board has decided to resolve a tie with a runoff election, the Board shall schedule the runoff
election in accordance with law. (Education Code 5016)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 25691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description

CA Constitution Article 2, Section 2 Voters; qualifications

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on

county board of education

245



2.0

3.0

4.1

4.2

Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Mintues
Liberty Elementary School
Library
/71 Bast Pacific Avenue. Tulare, CA 93274

6:04 p.m.

Adopt Agenda (Action Item)

This item is provided as an opportunity for trustees, through consensus, to approve,
re-sequence, or table agenda topics. In accordance with the Brown Act Requirements
effective July 1, 2008, if documents are distributed to board members concerning an agenda
item within 72 hours of a regular board meeting, at the same time the documents will be
made available for public inspection at the District Office located at 1771 E. Pacific Ave.
Tulare, CA 93274.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Brown Act, if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting, including receipt of the agenda and
documents in the agenda package in an alternate format, please contact the Liberty
Elementary School District Office at (559) 686-1675. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the district to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting (28CFR35.102-35, 104 ADA Title II), and allow for the preparation of
documents in the appropriate alternate format.

Adjourn to Closed Session (May reconvene after the public meeting, if necessary)
The Board may adjourn to closed session to discuss matters of personnel security,
negotiations, student discipline, litigation, or other matters as authorized by the government
Code Section 3459.1, 5496.6 and 54967.6 and Ed Code Sections 35136 and 48913.
a. (Ed Code Section 35146, 48900) Student Discipline & Other Confidential
Student Matters
b. (Gov. Code 54957) Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint
¢. (Gov. Code 54957) Superintendent Contract
d. Gov. Code 54956.9) Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government
Code section 54956.9, subdivision (d)(2) or (3)
e. (Gov. Code 54957) Employment, resignations, transfers, etc. of Certificated and
Classified Personnel
f. (Gov. Code, 3549.1) Negotiations

Flag Salute

Roll Call: Robert Gilson President Present
Dr. Jim Guadagni Clerk Present
John Beaver Member Present
Ron Koetsier Member Present
Jonathon Thorpe Member Absent

Also in attendance for Closed and Open Session: Deanna Cardoza (Superintendent).




4.3

4.4

5.0

S.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

Board President — Opportunity for Board President to comment or report on any matters
pertinent or of concern to the Board.

a. Board President to announce Closed Session Items of Discussion.
Public Comments:
Those in the audience desiring to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda may
do so at this time. Each speaker is to have (3) three minutes to address the Board and make
a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question regarding matters related to
the school system. Please understand that the Board does not take action on non-agenda
items.

Information Items:

This item is provided for informational reports and will highlight district and student events
and successes.

Staff Reports - Opportunity for Liberty Elementary School Staff Members to comment or
report on any matters pertinent or of concern to the Board. Mrs. Newkirk invited the Board
to the Christmas Program on December 16™at 8:30 a.m.

Superintendent— Opportunity for Superintendent/Principal to comment or report on any
matters pertinent or of concern to the Board. Mrs. Cardoza shared that our annual canned
Jood drive organized by our LPTC group feed 5 Liberty families for Thanksgiving. LPTC
also ran a Santa Shop allowing student to purchase low cost gifts for family members. If
any students didn’t bring money to spend, LPTC gave them a $2.00 voucher.

Action Items:
These items are provided for Board information, discussion, and/or action.

Annual Organizational Meeting: Robert Gilson administered the Oath of Office to
Diane Tanner, John Beaver, Ron Koetsier and Jill White.

1. Elect Board President Diane Tanner made a motion to nominate Ron Koetsier as
President 2" made by Jill White Ayes: John Beaver, Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill
White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent: Jonathan Thorpe Motion Carried

2. Certification of District Clerk Election John Beaver made a motion to nominate
John Beaver for the Clerk position 2" made by Diane Tanner. Ayes: John Beaver,
Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent: Jonathan T, horpe

Motion Carried

3. Authorized Signatures for Calendar Year 2023 Diane Tanner made a motion to
appoint the following as the Authorized Signers for the District. Ron Koetsier, John
Beaver, Deanna Cardoza and Terri Shirk 2" made by Jill White Ayes: John Beaver,
Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent: Jonathan T horpe

Motion Carried

4. Board Representative to Vote in 2023 Election of County Committee Members
John Beaver made a motion to nominate Diann Tanner for the Board Representative
to Vote in 2023 Election of County Committee Members 2" made by Diane Tanner.
Ayes: John Beaver, Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0
Absent: Jonathan Thorpe Motion Carried




6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Approval of Consent Agenda

*Minutes of Regular Board Meeting, November 08, 2022

*Payments of Warrants

Diane Tanner made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda 2" made by Jill White
Ayes: John Beaver, Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent:
Jonathan Thorpe Motion Carried

Approval of CSBA updated Board Policies for September 2022

Diane Tanner made a motion to approve the September 2022 Updated CSBA Board
Policies 2" made by Jill White Ayes: John Beaver, Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill
White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent: Jonathan Thorpe Motion Carried

Approval of updated 2022-2023 School Calendar. 8" Grade Graduation on May 30,
2023 John Beaver made a motion to approve the updated 2022-2023 School Calendar
reflecting the change of Graduation 2" made by Diane Tanner Ayes: John Beaver, Ron
Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent: Jonathan Thorpe

Motion Carried

Approval of 1* Interim Budget Report and Budget Revisions

John Beaver made a motion to approve the 2022-2023 1* Interim Report and Budget
Revisions 2" made by Diane Tanner Ayes: John Beaver, Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill
White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent: Jonathan Thorpe Motion Carried

Adjournment 7:14 p.m.




23 Liberty Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

Accounts Payable Final Prelist - 12/8/2022 1:55:22PM

12/8/2022
1:55:22PM

Page lof 2
APY500

E 3 3 3 THZDF ¢ o i
Batch No 297

Reference Invoice Audit
Yendor No Vendor Name Number Date Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
000585  AT&T PV-230268 11/30/2022 BAN+#9391032124 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $146.08 j@?.v.?.?w
AT&T PV-230278 12/8/2022 BANS391057381 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $333.68 Both 5@
AT&T PV-230279 12/8/2022 BANS391028846 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $237.15
Total Check Amount: $716.91
000762  CITY OF TULARE PV-230269 11/30/2022 CUSTOMER#251965+001 010-11000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $825.91 ﬁaqv%‘m?;
iy iy &
Total Check Amount: $825.91 B @
000797  CVIN/ VAST PV-230276 12/1/2022 40603 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $195.00 ﬁs m@,\@?m g%
1AL
Total Check Amount: $195.00 @
000958  Deere Credit PV-230277 12/3/2022 2722174 010-00000-0-00000-91000-74380-0 $173.14 G ha whil
Deere Credit 12/3/2022 2722174 010-00000-0-00000-91000-74390-0 $502.40 G ﬁwz A_,._@
Total Check Amount: $675.54
000782  Deolinda Barcellos PV-230280 12/8/2022 AVID-MUSIC 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $59.00 ﬁer%” M.e
Total Check Amount: $99.00 y
000906  Lenovo Financial Services PV-230274 11/20/2022 41204465 010-32130-0-11100-10000-56000-0 $14,229.29 D m_n.m.@a\j
5 Hve
Total Check Amount: $14,229.29 3
000100  Llinders PV-230271 11/28/2022 ACCT#A52175 010-07230-0-00000-36000-56000-0 $5859.73 D B QM -
@ie% 2
Total Check Amount: 5,859.73 -
55, ﬁtﬁw%m@?@
000501 Mobile Modular Management PV-230262 11/25/2022 2355482 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $4,020.00 M $+?5
Corp 2 B
%
Total Check Amount: $4,020.00 Bith ~$
000918  Perfect Care Landscape PV-230270 11/28/2022 17059 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $2,135.00 D Nandhiy
Total Check Amount: $2,135.00 prinreg
000685  Pixley Union School District PV-230263 11/25/2022 LIBERTY ELEMENTARY 010-00000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $50.00 % .,m_:a\z, Ry
3
Total Check Amount: $50.00 ww e
000771 Rache Oil Inc. PV-230272 11/30/2022 180366 010-07230-0-00000-36000-43000-0 $414.09 ,@

[T
Fuel



23 Liberty Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

12/8/2022
1:55:22PM

Accounts Payable Final Prelist - 12/8/2022 1:55:22PM

Page 2 of 2

APYS00

Batch No 297

Reference Invoice Separate Audit
Vendor No Vendor Name Number Date Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
Total Check Amount: %$414.09
000917  Sebastian PV-230273 11/22/2022 31922 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $200.00 Tresy A%
Total Check Amount; $200.00
000064  SISC PV-230264 11/25/2022 CLIENT ID 71985 * (010-00000-0-00000-00000-95024-0 $65,179.10 A ?,.wv..@g,_,
PEIRL.C S
Total Check Amount: $65,179.10 &V ) @
000050  Southern California Edison PV-230265 11/25/2022 ACCT#700055215373 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $8,136.49 Me S.zaf
Southern California Edison PV-230266 11/25/2022 ACCT#700431744721 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $1,609.36 B ML Mg
Total Check Amount: $9,745.85
000071 US Bank PV-230275 11/22/2022 ACT#4246044555628050 * (010-07200-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $1,335.56 M Hle&%wp o
US Bank 11/22/2022 ACT#4246044555628050 * (010-00000-0-00000-71100-58000-0 $43.06 M .
US Bank 11/22/2022 ACT#4246044555628050 * 010-00000-0-00000-71000-43000-0 $167.46 Mg %T (¥
US Bank 11/22/2022 ACT#4246044555628050 * (10-00000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 $1,165.87 M Maiad
Total Check Amount: $2,711.95 $ug
000493  Valley Expetec PV-230267 11/30/2022 Z20002019/2024 010-00000-0-00000-72000-58000-0 $782.61

Total Check Amount:

$782.61



23 Liberty Elementary School District

Vendor No Vendor Name

Reference
Number

Tulare County Office of Education 12/8/2022
Accounts Payable Final PreList - 12/8/2022 1:55:22PM

Invoice
Date

PO #

Invoice No

1:55:22PM

Separate
Check Account Code

Page 1l of 1
APYS00

Batch No 297
Audit

Amount Flag EFT

Total District Payment Amount:

$107,839.98




23 Liberty Elementary School District

Vendor No Vendor Name

12/8/2022

Tulare County Office of Education 1:55:92PM

Accounts Payable Final Prelist - 12/8/2022 1:55:22PM

Reference

Number

Invoice

Separate

Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code

Page l1of 1
APYS00

Batch Mo 297
Audit

Amount Flag EFT

Batch No 297

Total Accounts Payable:

$107,835.98

Fund Summary

The School District hereby orders that payment be made to each of the above
vendors in the amounts indicated on the preceding Accounts Payable Final
totaling 107,839.98 and the County Office of Education transfer the amounts
from the indicated funds of the district to the Check Clearing Fund in order that
checks may be drawn from a single revolving fund (Education Code 42631 &
42634).

&%&? _ /2/8/2533—

>c§§\ Signaturg Q

Date

Total

010

$107,839.98

Total

$107,839.98




23 Liberty Elementary School

Tulare County Office of Education

Accounts Payable Final Prelist - 12/28/2022 1:45:21PM

12/28/2022
1:45:21PM

Page 1 of 3
APY500

dkk FINAL *%%*
Batch No 298

Reference Invoice Audit
Vendor No Vendor Name Number Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
000933  Aleshire & Wynder Attorneys PV-230282 3/7/2022 66616 010-00000-0-00000-71000-58000-0 $6,953.08 ﬁ%é.ﬂ )
9 .« 1)y A
Total Check Amount: $6,953.08 @
000585  ATET PV-230281 12/22/2022 ACCT#829065989 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $73.06 zﬁﬁi\wi
Y L bl A
Total Check Amount; $73.06 b 3
000932  Brenda Allender PV-230285 12/22/2022 DEC 010-00000-0-00000-71000-52000-0 $22.50 ! f‘m‘ﬁ\
Total Check Amount: $22.50
C }
000687  BSK Associates PV-230284  12/8/2022 AF30532 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $70.00 ﬂ .w%”? Y
iflond
Total Check Amount: $70.00 %
000589  California Turf Equipment Pv-230286  9/22/2022 563061/72552/73336 010-00000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 $965.91 Jm.: Q_PMJ
a
Total Check Amount: $965.91 i
000857  De Lage Laden Financial Serv PV-230287 12/10/2022 78387662 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $1,904.84 mﬁw% b ?«
PHin
Total Check Amount: $1,904.84 ’ M
000514  Division of State Architect PV-230299 12/21/2022 02 -12555 010-00000-0-00000-85000-62000-0 $430.00 t= "W z@
Total Check Amount: $430.00
000875  DONALD T. AAMODT PV-230283 12/22/2022 NOV-DEC 010-00000-0-00000-71000-52000-0 $55.63 ™ ) ﬁﬁa...%r\
Total Check Amount: $55.63
000743  EnviroClean Sanitation Supply PV-230288 12/12/2022 0141804/141846 010-00000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 $1,072.76 “Am.w J q“fmsu
Gaudl
Total Check Amount: $1,072.76 ’
000849  Iizel Howard PV-230290 12/9/2022 SUPPLIES 010-00000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $41.48 k\.wm?mﬁa
Y 4 i3
Total Check Amount: $£41.48 b
000953  JAIDEN MARTIN PV-230305 12/28/2022 SUPPLIES 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $123.09 ‘Hm,aer” %M
Total Check Amount: $123.09
000499  JOANNA FUNG PV-230289 12/9/2022 STATEMENT 010-00000-0-00000-71000-58000-0 $3,000.00 Ce ?VMQ@.@\&R



23 Liberty Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 12/28/2022 1:45:21PM

12/28/2022
1:45:21PM

Page 20of 3
APYS500

Batch No 298

Reference Invoice Audit
Vendor No Vendor Name Number Date PC # Invoice Mo Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
Total Check Amount: $3,000.00
000934 Kaitlin Martin PV-230292  12/13/2022 SUPPLIES 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $167.75 ,HWMMW
Total Check Amount: $167.75
000906  Lenovo Financial Services PV-230300 12/10/2022 41335597 010-32130-0-11100-10000-56000-0 $45,840.91 _Qs‘.ﬁsﬂtﬂ
e &
Total Check Amount: $45,840.91 M
000158  Lozano Smith,LLP PV-230291 12/13/2022 2177764/2177765 010-00000-0-00000-71000-58000-0 $1,583.40 fe %Jm
}vﬁﬂi 168
Total Check Amount: $1,583.40
000501  MOBILE MODULAR PV-230293  12/1/2022 2358123/2366831 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $6,460.00 D Mawdhl
iy
Total Check Amount: $6,460.00 B _\(M
- - .@‘9
000060  Office Depot PV-230294  12/1/2022 ACCT#28265583 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $908.05 LMA..W »
& .
Total Check Amount: $908.05 '
000920  Parsec Education, Inc. PV-230301  12/20/2022 20220079 010-00000-0-00000-71000-58000-0 $9,394.00 L
Covsisldna
Total Check Amount: $9,394.00
000918  Perfect Care Landscape PV-230302  9/26/2022 16826 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $1,013.10 D Powdhi
e
Total Check Amount: $1,013.10 @ : fi@
000297  RES-COM PV-230296  12/3/2022 2083959 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $130.00 Tie S@‘gj
I
Total Check Amount: $130.00 Bl é@
000771  Roche Oil Inc. PV-230295 12/14/2022 ACCT#51009 010-07230-0-00000-36000-43000-0 $710.78 %Mwe@ > @
W Er
Total Check Amount; $710.78
000689  Southern California Gas Co PV-230303 12/28/2022 ACCT#19643697063 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $14.79 ﬂﬁ 3..@‘ hi 1
RASES
Total Check Amount: $14.79 ) %
000709  Southwest School Supply PV-230297 12/22/2022 ACCT#358860 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $2,178.83 TusT
Mm & % a.

Total Check Amount:

$2,178.83



23 Liberty Elementary School District Tulare ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Office of Education MML\%%%. MWW&N

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 12/28/2022 1:45:21PM

Page 3 of 3
APY500

k%K FINAL k**
Batch No 298

Reference Invoice Separate Audit
Vendor No Vendor Name Number Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
000691  SWRCB FEES PV-230304 12/21/2022 . SM-1041601 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $2,377.50 /%ﬁ%ﬂ 7 Y
Total Check Amount: $2,377.50 ww el ;.M
000634  Zoom PV-230298 12/14/2022 IN3139107 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $192.99 N« m«‘z@ £
Total Check Amount: @ o :e..m

$192.99



23 Liberty Elementary School District

Vendor Mo Vendor Name

Tulare County Office of Education 12/28/2022

1:45:21PM

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 12/28/2022 1:45:21PM

Reference
Number

Invoice
Date

PO #

Invoice No

Separate
Check Account Code

Page 1 of 1
APY500

Batch No 298
Audit

Amount Flag EFT

Total District Payment Amount:

$B5,584.45




23 Liberty Elementary School District

| 12/28/2022
Tulare County Office of Education 45 01PM

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 12/28/2022 1:45:21PM

Page 1 of 1
APY300

Batch No 298

Reference Invoice Separate Audit
Vendor No Vendor Mame Number Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
Batch No 298 Total Accounts Payable: $85,684.45

Fund Summary

The School District hereby orders that payment be made to each of the above
vendors in the amounts indicated on the preceding Accounts Payable Final
totaling 85,684.45 and the County Office of Education transfer the amounts
from the indicated funds of the district to the Check Clearing Fund in order that
checks may be drawn from a single revolving fund (Education Code 42631 &
42634).

Authorizigg-Signature 7 £

Total

010

$85,684.45

Total

$85,684.45




ANNUAL REPORT OF DEVELOPER FEES

School District Name: | jhery Elementary School District

Reporting Period: 57/01/21-06/30/22
Date Report Made Available to the Public: December 23, 2022

Date Report Presented to the Board: January 10, 2023

DESCRIPTION OF THE TYPE AND AMOUNT OF THE FEE

This district has levied school facilities fees pursuant to various resolutions, the most
recent of which is dated 04/12/122. These resolutions were adopted under the authority
of Government Code Section 53080 for the purpose of funding the construction or
reconstruction of school facilities.

The amount collected by this district is $4.79 per square foot of assessable space of
residential construction: and $.78 per square foot of covered and enclosed space of
commercial/industrial construction; but subject to the district's determination that a
particular project is exempt from all or part of these fees.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 17623 and an agreement with the district(s)
sharing territory with the district, generally only 67% of the maximum fee specified
above is distributed to this district.




ANNUAL DEVELOPER FEE REPORT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 06/306/22

DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TOTALS PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT
CODE NO. 1 NO. 4 NO. 5
BEGINNING BALANCE 1,150,809.53 1,150,809.53 N/A N/A N/A N/A
REVENUE
Mitigation/Developer Fees (Schedule A) 8681 512,232.90 512,232.90
Interest Income 8660 12,755.01 12,755.01
Other Income 8699
TOTAL REVENUE 524,987.91 524,987.91
EXPENDITURES
Salaries & Benefits 1000-3999
Adminstration - -
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999
Travel & Conference - -
Rentals, Leases and Repairs - -
Other Services & Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 509,250.00 509,250.00
Sites & Improvements of Sites
Buildings & Improvements
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 509,250.00 509,250.00
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers Out (Schedule C) 7610-7629
Uses 7630-7699 - -
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES -
ENDING BALANCE A.m Ll 54244 Libl S9244 NA N/A N/A N/A

"}"




Annual Developer Fee Report
Project Status Report
Project Name:Classroom Addition

Estimated Start Date: October-25
Estimated Completion Date: July-26
Estimated Cost: 5,300,000
Are funds currently available to complete the NO
project? (Circle One)

Estimated % Esiimated Collections

Funding Sources Amounts to be to Date
Received by

Developer Fees 1,166,547 1,166,547
State Funds 4,133,453 May-27
General Obligation Bonds
Other:
Other:
Other:
Total $ 5,300,000 $ 1,166,547
Comments:

Schedule B - Page 1.




ANNUAL DEVELOPER FEE REPORT
SCHEDULE OF MITIGATION/DEVELOPER FEES
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 6/30/22

DEPOSIT PERMIT GROSS PROJ
DATE| NUMBER| AMOUNT DATE NUMBER| TYPE SQ.FT AMOUNT| RMA FEES TOTALS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

1/12/2022 220054| 21,248.64] 1/11/2022 2002042|RES 5,208 21,248.64 45.33 14,120.43|Project 1
1/21/2022 220062 9,5635.66 1/20/2022 2102651] COM 14,551 9,603.66 4533 | $ 6,357.11 |Project 1
2/24/2022 220072 343.84 2/16/2022 2001960] COM 624 411.84 453318 229.23 |Project 1
3/24/2022 220083 9,824.76| 3/24/2022|21-19125 COM 14,886 9,824.76 0.00 6,549.84|Project 1
3/24/2022 220083 9,791.76 3/24/2022121-19126 COM 14,836 9,791.76 - $ 6,527.84 |Project 1
3/24/2022 220083 8,025.60 6/24/2022121-19127 COM 12,160 8,025.60 - $ 5,350.40 |Project 1
3/23/2022 763741| 35,100.24 3/23/2022121-21949, 22-22552-22-22555RES 8,603 35,100.24 226.65 | $ 23,400.16 [Project 1
5/2/2022 763741 87,968.88 5/3/2022|22-2956-22223 RES 21,561 87,968.88 589.29 | $  29,322.96 |Project 1
5/20/2022 763741] 92,187.60 5/21/202222-23407-22867 RES 22,595 92,187.60 543.96 1 §  30,729.20 !Project 1
10/20/2021 220034] 11,880.00 | 10/19/2021}2102393.94,95 COM 18,000 11,880.00 13599 1 § 7,784.01 |Project 1
1/7/2022 744674| 177,790.08 1/6/2022]21-19925-21-20776 RES 43,576 177,790.08 12239114 $ 118,526.72 |Project 1
1/10/2022 744674| 71,273.52 1/9/2022|21-21826-21-21825 RES 17,469 71,273.52 36264 |3 47,515.68 |Project 1
2/28/2022 748228 29,135.28 2/27/2022122-22412-22-22416 RES 7141 29,135.28 226.65 1 $  19,243.52 |Project 1
3/10/2022 757360 35,846.88 3/9/2022121-21941-21-21944 RES 8,786 35,846.88 181.32 18 23,897.92 |Project 1
6/2/2022 220120 205.24 6/1/2022 2102872| COM 414 273.24 453318 136.83 jProject 1
6/2/2022 220125 3,439.20 6/1/2022]2200902,903, 2201784 COM 5520 3,643.20 13599 1 $ 2,429.64 |Project 1

Totals $613,059 215,930 | $613,059.00 | $ 5847.00 | $ 342,121.69

Schedule A




ANNUAL DEVELOPER FEE REPORT
SCHEDULE OF INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
AS OF 06/30/22

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Public Purpose

Date Fund Amount Identify the public improvement on which the transferred fees will be expended

N/A N/A
Totals -
INTERFUND LOANS
Deductions/ Estimated
Balance Additions/ Amounts Balance | Repayment] Interest Public Purpose

Fund 71172021 New Loans Repaid 6/30/2022 Date Rate Identify the public improvement on which the fees will be expended
N/A - N/A

Total - - - -

Schedule C - Page 1




Z ebed - 5 sinpayos

VIN

109l01d uswanoidwi olgnd

Junowy

aafed

JequinnN
eLBpA

# jwisd

a1eg

(3) (3) L0099 "2'D 0L LNVNSHNd SANNIIY 40 ITINAIHIS

¢2¢0¢/0€/90 40 SV

L¥0d3d 334 ¥3d0T13A3A TVNNNY




